## **Station Licence**

granted to

**Wales Operator of Last Resort Limited** 

Reference Number: UK 03 2020 0006

# **Table of contents**

PA	\GE
Part I - Scope	1
Part II - Interpretation	2
Part III - Conditions	4
Condition 1: Insurance against Third Party Liability	4
Condition 2: Claims Allocation and Handling	5
Condition 3: Passenger Rights	6
Condition 4: Information for Passengers	7
Condition 5: Accessible Travel Policy	8
Condition 6: Complaints Handling	10
Condition 7: Liaison with the PC and LTUC	13
Condition 9: Safety and standards	14
Condition 10: Environmental Matters	15
Condition 11: Payment of Fees	16
Condition 12: Change of Control	17
Condition 13: Non-Discrimination	18
Condition 14: Emergency Access	19
Condition 15: Co-operation with Transport for London	20
Condition 16: Changes to the Schedule	21
Part IV - Revocation	22
Schedule - List of Stations	24

Note: Condition 8 is not used in this licence.

## Part I - Scope

- 1. The Office of Rail and Road ("ORR"), in exercise of the powers conferred by section 8 of the Railways Act 1993 (as amended) ("the Act"), hereby grants to Wales Operator of Last Resort Limited, company registration number 12619906, ("the licence holder") a licence authorising the licence holder:
  - (a) to be the operator of the stations listed in the Schedule subject to the Conditions set out in Part III.
- 2. This licence shall come into force on 20 August 2020 and shall continue in force unless and until revoked in accordance with Part IV.

20 August 2020

Signed by authority of the Office of Rail and Road

les Wals



# **Part II - Interpretation**

#### 1. In this licence:

"comply"

is to be interpreted in accordance with ORR's most recently published licensing guidance.

"control"

- (a) A person is taken to have control of the licence holder if he exercises, or is able to exercise or is entitled to acquire, direct or indirect control over the licence holder's affairs, and in particular if he possesses or is entitled to acquire:
  - (i) 30% or more of any share capital or issued share capital of the licence holder or of the voting power in the licence holder; or
  - (ii) such part of any issued share capital of the licence holder as would, if the whole of the income of the licence holder were in fact distributed among the participators (without regard to any rights which he or any other person has as a loan creditor), entitle him to receive 30% or more of the amount so distributed; or
  - (iii) such rights as would, in the event of the winding-up of the licence holder or in any other circumstances, entitle him to receive 30% or more of the assets of the licence holder which would then be available for distribution among the participators.
- (b) Subsections (4) to (6) of section 416 of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988, and the legislative provisions referred to in those subsections, apply to the interpretation of paragraph (a) in the same way that they apply to the interpretation of subsection (2) of section 416 of that Act:

"licensed activities" means things authorised to be done by the licence

holder in its capacity as operator of stations pursuant to

this licence.

"LTUC" means the London Transport Users Committee and any

successor to LTUC which performs the same functions.

"the PRO Regulation" means Regulation (EC) No.1371/2007 of the European

Parliament and of the Council of 23 October 2007 on

rail passengers' rights and obligations.

"the PC" means the Passengers' Council and any successor or

delegated body which performs the function of the PC.

"RSSB" means Rail Safety and Standards Board Limited (a

company limited by guarantee and registered in

England and Wales under number 04655675), and its

successors and assigns.

"station" includes light maintenance depot insofar as any station

is also a light maintenance depot.

- 2. Any reference in this licence to a numbered paragraph is a reference to the paragraph bearing that number in the Condition in which the reference occurs.
- 3. In interpreting this licence, headings shall be disregarded.
- 4. Where in this licence the licence holder is required to comply with any obligation within a specified time limit, that obligation shall be deemed to continue after that time limit if the licence holder fails to comply with that obligation within that time limit.
- 5. Where in this licence there is a provision for ORR or the Secretary of State to give consent, such consent may be given subject to conditions.
- 6. The Interpretation Act 1978 shall apply to this licence as if it were an Act.
- 7. The provisions of section 149 of the Act shall apply for the purposes of the service of any document pursuant to this licence.
- 8. Unless the context otherwise requires, terms and expressions defined in the Act and the Railways Act 2005 shall have the same meanings in this licence.

# **Part III - Conditions**

### **Condition 1: Insurance against Third Party Liability**

1. The licence holder shall, in respect of licensed activities, maintain insurance against third party liabilities in accordance with any relevant ORR general or specific approval, as amended from time to time.

#### **Condition 2: Claims Allocation and Handling**

- 1. The licence holder shall, except in so far as ORR may otherwise consent, at all times be a party to and comply with such agreements or arrangements (as amended from time to time) relating to:
  - (a) the handling of claims against operators of railway assets; and
  - (b) the allocation of liabilities among operators of railway assets as may have been approved by ORR.
- 2. Except with the consent of ORR, the licence holder shall not, in relation to any of the agreements or arrangements described in paragraph 1 (the "relevant claims handling arrangements"), enter into any agreement or arrangement with any other party to the relevant claims handling arrangements:
  - (a) under which the licence holder agrees not to exercise any rights which it may have under any of the relevant claims handling arrangements; or
  - (b) varying the relevant claims handling arrangementsother than as provided for under the terms of the relevant claims handling arrangements.

## **Condition 3: Passenger Rights**

1.	The licence holder shall comply with articles 18 and 29 of the PRO Regulation.			

## **Condition 4: Information for Passengers**

1. The licence holder shall cooperate with train operators so far as is reasonably necessary to enable them to meet their obligations to provide information to passengers.

#### **Condition 5: Accessible Travel Policy**

- 1. The licence holder shall establish and thereafter comply with:
  - (a) a statement of policy; and
  - (b) a detailed body of arrangements, procedures, services and other benefits to be implemented or provided by the licence holder,

designed to protect the interests of people who are disabled in their use of stations operated by the licence holder and to facilitate such use (together the "ATP").

- 2. In establishing the ATP and in making any change to it, the licence holder shall have due regard to the code of practice published by the Secretary of State pursuant to section 71B of the Act and to articles 19(1), 21, 22 and 24 of the PRO Regulation.
- 3. The licence holder shall not establish, or make any material changes (save in respect of paragraph 4(b)), to the ATP unless and until:
  - (a) the PC and, where appropriate, LTUC has been consulted; and
  - (b) the licence holder has submitted the ATP, or (as the case may be) the proposed change, to ORR and ORR has approved it.
- 4. Where ORR requires the licence holder to carry out a review of the ATP or any part of it or the manner in which it has been implemented, with a view to determining whether any change should be made to it, the licence holder shall:
  - (a) promptly carry out a review and submit a written report to ORR setting out the results or conclusions; and
  - (b) make such changes to the ATP, or the manner in which it is implemented, as ORR may reasonably require after ORR has received a report under paragraph 4(a) and consulted the licence holder, the PC and, where appropriate, LTUC.
- 5. The licence holder shall:
  - (a) send a copy of the ATP and of any change to it to ORR and the PC and, where appropriate, LTUC;

- (b) in a place of reasonable prominence at each station operated by the licence holder, display or procure the display of a notice giving the address from which a current copy of the statement may be obtained; and
- (c) make available free of charge a current copy of the statement to any person who requests it.
- 6. Nothing in this Condition shall oblige the licence holder to undertake any action that entails excessive cost, taking into account all the circumstances including the nature and scale of licensed activities.

#### **Condition 6: Complaints Handling**

- 1. The licence holder shall establish and thereafter comply with a procedure for handling complaints relating to licensed activities from its customers and potential customers (the "Complaints Procedure").
- 2. The licence holder shall not establish, or make any material change (save in respect of paragraph 3(b)), to the Complaints Procedure unless and until:
  - (a) the PC and, where appropriate, LTUC has been consulted; and
  - (b) the licence holder has submitted the Complaints Procedure, or (as the case may be) the proposed change, to ORR and ORR has approved it.
- 3. Where ORR requires the licence holder to carry out a review of the Complaints Procedure or any part of it or the manner in which it has been implemented, with a view to determining whether any change should be made to it, the licence holder shall:
  - (a) promptly carry out a review and submit a written report to ORR setting out the results or conclusions; and
  - (b) make such changes to the Complaints Procedure, or the manner in which it is implemented, as ORR may reasonably require after ORR has received a report under paragraph 3(a) and consulted the licence holder, the PC and, where appropriate, LTUC.
- 4. The licence holder shall:
  - (a) send a copy of the Complaints Procedure and of any change to it to ORR and the PC and, where appropriate, LTUC;
  - (b) in a place of reasonable prominence at each station operated by the licence holder, display or procure the display of a notice giving the address from which a current copy of the Complaints Procedure may be obtained; and
  - (c) make available free of charge a current copy of the Complaints

    Procedure to any person who requests it.

- 5. Alternative Dispute Resolution:
  - (a) The licence holder shall become and thereafter remain, a member of the Relevant ADR Scheme;
  - (b) the licence holder shall comply with its obligations under the Relevant ADR Scheme; and
  - (c) if the Relevant ADR Scheme, at any time, ceases to be Compliant, the licence holder must:
    - (i) within 14 days after becoming aware that the Relevant ADR Scheme is no longer Compliant, notify ORR of that fact;
    - (ii) within no more than 28 days after becoming aware that the Relevant ADR Scheme is no longer Compliant, notify ORR of the arrangements it has put in place to ensure that the interests of passengers are not adversely affected and must, if so directed by ORR at any time, revise those arrangements to take account of any concerns ORR reasonably raises about the protection of passenger interests; and
    - (iii) if the Relevant ADR Scheme continues to be non-Compliant for more than 6 months:
      - take all such steps as are reasonably practicable, including working together with other members of the Relevant ADR Scheme, and Rail Delivery Group, as appropriate, to identify another alternative dispute resolution scheme which is Compliant; and
      - notify such scheme to ORR within not more than 12 months (or such longer period as ORR may agree) after the date on which the Relevant ADR Scheme ceased to be Compliant.
- 6. For the purposes of this Condition:

"Relevant ADR Scheme" means:

- the alternative dispute resolution scheme procured by Rail Delivery Group (the Rail Ombudsman) or, as the case may be, any Successor Scheme.

#### "Successor Scheme" means:

 such other alternative dispute resolution scheme as is notified to ORR by the licence holder under sub-paragraph (c)(iii) above, and is accepted by ORR as providing suitable protection for the interests of passengers.

#### "Compliant", in relation to the Relevant ADR Scheme, means:

- that the scheme is approved by the Designated Competent Authority and meets the requirements of ORR's Guidance in respect of an alternative dispute resolution scheme.

### "Designated Competent Authority" means:

 the relevant Designated Competent Authority under The Alternative Dispute Resolution for Consumer Disputes (Competent Authorities and Information) Regulations 2015.

#### "ORR's Guidance" means:

 ORR's Guidance on the Complaints Handling Procedures as amended from time to time.

#### Condition 7: Liaison with the PC and LTUC

- 1. Whenever reasonably requested to do so by the PC and LTUC (as relevant) the licence holder shall meet with the PC and LTUC (as relevant) to discuss and review such matters as the PC and LTUC (as relevant) may wish to consider in connection with its functions under Part I of the Act including the handling of complaints made about an alleged infringement of the PRO Regulation. The licence holder shall not under this Condition be obliged to attend more than two meetings with the PC and LTUC (as relevant) in any calendar year.
- 2. The licence holder shall provide the PC and LTUC (as relevant) with such information as satisfies all the following conditions:
  - (a) the PC and LTUC (as relevant) reasonably requests the information for the proper performance of its functions under Part I of the Act;
  - (b) no undue burden is imposed on the licence holder in procuring or furnishing the information; and
  - (c) the information would normally be available to the licence holder, unless the PC and LTUC (as relevant) considers the information essential to enable it to exercise its functions under Part I of the Act.
- 3. In every calendar year in which the licence holder meets with the PC and, where appropriate, LTUC pursuant to paragraph 1, the licence holder shall be represented by one or more senior executives of the licence holder in at least one meeting with the PC and LTUC (separately or jointly).
- 4. Where the licence holder holds another licence each number specified as a maximum or minimum in this Condition shall apply jointly to meetings under this Condition and to meetings under any corresponding condition in that other licence.

#### 5. Where:

- (a) the licence holder and the PC or LTUC, or both disagree as to the reasonableness of a request made to the licence holder by the PC or LTUC, or both under paragraph 1 or paragraph 2;
- (b) either party refers the dispute to the Secretary of State; and
- (c) the Secretary of State determines that the request is reasonable the licence holder shall promptly thereafter comply with the request.

#### **Condition 9: Safety and standards**

- 1. The licence holder shall comply with:
  - (a) such Railway Group Standards as are applicable to its licensed activities; and
  - (b) subject to paragraph 2, such Rail Industry Standards (or parts thereof) as are applicable to its licensed activities.
- 2. The licence holder is not required to comply with an applicable Rail Industry Standard (or part thereof) where:
  - (a) it has, following consultation with such persons as it considers are likely to be affected, identified an equally effective measure which will achieve the purpose of the standard; and
  - (b) it has adopted and is complying with that measure.
- 3. In this Condition:

"Railway Group Standards" means standards authorised pursuant to the

Railway Group Standards Code prepared by

RSSB; and

"Rail Industry Standards" has the meaning set out in the Standards

Manual, established by RSSB.

#### **Condition 10: Environmental Matters**

- 1. The licence holder shall establish a written policy designed to protect the environment from the effect of licensed activities, together with operational objectives and management arrangements (together "the environmental arrangements").
- 2. The environmental arrangements shall:
  - (a) take due account of any relevant guidance issued by ORR;
  - (b) be effective within six months beginning with the day on which this licence comes into force; and
  - (c) be reviewed by the licence holder periodically, and otherwise as appropriate.
- 3. Nothing contained in paragraph 1 shall oblige the licence holder to undertake any action that entails excessive cost taking into account all the circumstances, including the nature and scale of operations of the type carried out by the licence holder.
- 4. The licence holder shall, upon establishment and any material modification of the environmental arrangements, promptly send ORR a current copy of the policy together with a summary of the operational objectives and management arrangements.
- 5. The licence holder shall act with regard to the policy and operational objectives and use its reasonable endeavours to operate the management arrangements effectively.

#### **Condition 11: Payment of Fees**

- 1. In respect of the year beginning on 1 April 2020 and in each subsequent year, the licence holder shall render to ORR a payment which is the aggregate of the following amounts:
  - (a) the annual fee applicable to this licence, as determined by ORR; and
  - (b) an amount which shall represent a fair proportion as determined by ORR of the amount estimated by ORR (in consultation with the Competition and Markets Authority) as having been incurred in the calendar year immediately preceding the 1 April in question by the Competition and Markets Authority in connection with references made to it under section 13 of the Act with respect to this licence or any class of licence of which ORR determines that this licence forms part.
- 2. The payment shall be rendered by the licence holder within such time as ORR may require, being not less than 30 days beginning with the day on which ORR gives notice to the licence holder of its amount.

## **Condition 12: Change of Control**

1. The licence holder shall, if any person obtains control of the licence holder, notify ORR as soon as practicable thereafter.

#### **Condition 13: Non-Discrimination**

 Except in so far as ORR may otherwise consent, the licence holder shall not in its licensed activities, or in carrying out any other function contemplated by this licence, unduly discriminate between particular persons or between any classes or descriptions of person.

### **Condition 14: Emergency Access**

During any emergency affecting the railway, the licence holder shall, to the
extent that it is legally entitled to do so, grant to any person requesting it such
permission to use any station of which the licence holder is the operator
pursuant to this licence as is necessary or expedient to alleviate the effects of
the emergency.

### **Condition 15: Co-operation with Transport for London**

- 1. The licence holder shall co-operate with Transport for London ("TfL") for the purpose of:
  - (a) ensuring the efficient operation of railway services and the provision of railway facilities; and
  - (b) co-ordinating, where possible, anticipated investment projects to the extent that such matters affect or may affect both the licence holder's and TfL's provision of railway services.

#### **Condition 16: Changes to the Schedule**

- 1. If the licence holder serves notice on ORR requesting that it be authorised to operate an additional station, that station shall be added to the Schedule on the date ORR receives the notice.
- 2. If, within 30 days of receiving the notice referred to in paragraph 1, ORR serves notice on the licence holder that it objects to such authorisation, that station shall be removed from the Schedule on the date the licence holder receives the notice.
- 3. If the licence holder ceases to be the operator of any station listed in the Schedule, the licence holder shall, within 30 days, serve notice on ORR of such cessation. That station shall be removed from the Schedule on the date ORR receives the notice.

## **Part IV - Revocation**

- 1. ORR may (after having consulted the appropriate franchising authority where the licence holder is a franchise operator) revoke this licence at any time if agreed in writing by the licence holder.
- 2. ORR may (after having consulted the appropriate franchising authority where the licence holder is a franchise operator) revoke this licence by not less than three months' notice to the licence holder:
  - (a) if a final order has been made, or a provisional order has been confirmed under section 55 of the Act, in respect of any contravention or apprehended contravention by the licence holder of any Condition, and the licence holder does not comply with the order within a period of three months beginning with the day on which ORR gives notice to the licence holder stating that this licence will be revoked pursuant to this term if the licence holder does not so comply; provided that ORR shall not give any such notice before the expiration of the period within which an application could be made under section 57 of the Act in relation to the order in question or before any proceedings relating to any such application are finally determined;
  - (b) if the licence holder has not commenced carrying on licensed activities within one year beginning with the day on which this licence comes into force or if the licence holder ceases to carry on licensed activities for a continuous period of at least one year;
  - (c) if the licence holder is convicted of an offence under section 146 of the Act in making its application for this licence; or
  - (d) if a person obtains control of the licence holder and:
    - (i) ORR has not approved such obtaining of control;
    - (ii) within one month of that obtaining of control coming to the notice of ORR, ORR serves notice on the licence holder stating that ORR proposes to revoke this licence in pursuance of this paragraph unless the person who has obtained control of the licence holder ceases to have control of the licence holder within

- the period of three months beginning with the day of service of the notice; and
- (iii) that cessation of control does not take place within that period.
- 3. ORR may (after having consulted the appropriate franchising authority where the licence holder is a franchise operator) revoke this licence by not less than 10 years' notice, such notice not to be given earlier than 25 years after the date this licence takes effect.

# **Schedule - List of Stations**

## Stations added from 7 February 2021

Aber	Coryton	Hopton Heath	Mountain Ash	Rogerstone
Abercynon	Craven Arms	Johnston (Pembs)	Nantwich	Roman Bridge
Aberdare	Criccieth	Kidwelly	Narberth	Ruabon
Aberdovey	Crosskeys	Kilgetty	Neath	Runcorn East
Abererch	Cwmbach	Knighton	Neston	Sarn
Abergavenny	Cwmbran	Knucklas	Newbridge	Saundersfoot
Abergele & Pensarn	Cynghordy	Lamphey	Newport (South Wales)	Severn Tunnel Junction
Aberystwyth	Danescourt	Leominster	Newtown (Powys)	Shotton
Ammanford	Deganwy	Lisvane & Thornhill	Ninian Park	Shotton High Level
Baglan	Dinas Powys	Llanaber	North Llanwrst	Shrewsbury
Bangor (Gwynedd)	Dinas Rhondda	Llanbedr	Pantyffynnon	Skewen
Bargoed	Dingle Road	Llanbister Road	Pembrey & Burry Port	Sugar Loaf
Barmouth	Dolau	Llanbradach	Pembroke Dock	Swansea
Barry Docks	Dolgarrog	Llandaf	Pembroke	Taffs Well
Barry Island	Dolwyddelan	Llandanwg	Penally	Tal-Y-Cafn
Barry	Dovey Junction	Llandecwyn	Penarth	Talsarnau
Betws-y-Coed	Dyffryn Ardudwy	Llandeilo	Pencoed	Talybont
Birchgrove	Eastbrook	Llandovery	Pengam	Tenby
Blaenau Ffestiniog	Ebbw Vale Parkway	Llandrindod	Penhelig	Tir-Phil
Bodorgan	Ebbw Vale Town	Llandudno Junction	Penmaenmawr	Ton Pentre
Borth	Energlyn & Churchill	Llandudno	Penrhiwceiber	Tondu
Bow Street (added 14/02/21)	Park			
Bridgend	Fairbourne	Llandybie	Penrhyndeudraeth	Tonfanau
Brithdir	Fairwater	Llanelli	Pensarn	Tonypandy
Briton Ferry	Fernhill	Llanfairfechan	Pentre-Bach	Trefforest Estate
Broome	Ferryside	Llanfairpwll	Pen-y-Bont	Trefforest
Buckley	Ffairfach	Llangadog	Penychain	Trehafod
Bucknell	Fishguard & Goodwick	Llangammarch	Penyffordd	Treherbert
Builth Road	Fishguard Harbour (Partial Responsibility)	Llangennech	Pontarddulais	Treorchy
Bynea	Flint	Llangynllo	Pontlottyn	Troed-y-Rhiw
Cadoxton	Frodsham	Llanharan	Pontyclun	Ty Croes
Caergwrle	Garth (Powys)	Llanhilleth	Pont-y-Pant	Ty Glas
Caerphilly	Garth (Mid Glamorgan)	Llanishen	Pontypool & New Inn	Tygwyn

Caersws	Gilfach Fargoed	Llanrwst	Pontypridd	Tywyn
Caldicot	Glan Conwy	Llansamlet	Port Talbot Parkway	Upton
Cardiff Bay	Gobowen	Llantwit Major	Porth	Valley
Cardiff Central	Gowerton	Llanwrda	Porthmadog	Waun-gron Park
Cardiff Queen Street	Grangetown	Llanwrtyd	Prees	Welshpool
Carmarthen	Gwersyllt	Llwyngwril	Prestatyn	Wem
Cathays	Harlech	Llwynypia	Pwllheli	Whitchurch (Cardiff)
Cefn-y-Bedd	Haverfordwest	Ludlow	Pye Corner	Whitchurch (Shropshire)
Chepstow	Hawarden Bridge	Lydney	Pyle	Whitland
Chester	Hawarden	Machynlleth	Quakers Yard	Wildmill
Chirk	Heath High Level	Maesteg Ewenny Road	Radyr	Wrenbury
Church Stretton	Heath Low Level	Maesteg	Rhoose Cardiff International Airport	Wrexham Central
Cilmeri	Helsby	Manorbier	Rhosneigr	Wrexham General
Clarbeston Road	Hengoed	Merthyr Tydfil	Rhiwbina	Ynyswen
Clunderwen	Hereford	Merthyr Vale	Rhyl	Yorton
Cogan	Heswall	Milford Haven	Rhymney	Ystrad Mynach
Colwyn Bay	Holyhead	Minffordd	Risca & Pontymister	Ystrad Rhondda
Conwy	Hope (Flintshire)	Morfa Mawddach		